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CHIPLEY — Police Chief 
Kevin Crews presented 
the City Council members 
with statistics, which show 
the racial demographics 
of vehicle stops made by 
police in 2012, during the 
council’s June workshop 
on Thursday.

According to the num-
bers, Chipley Police pulled 
over 108 white drivers and 

47 black drivers during that 
period. According to the 
report, 11 Hispanic drivers 
were stopped during that 
period as well as one Asian 
and one “other.”

The statistics were for 
the dates of Jan. 1 to April 
30, and Crews shared the 
report in response to com-
ments made at the May 8 
regular council meeting.

Dorothy Harper of Chi-
pley told the City Council 
at the May 8 meeting that 
Chipley Police seemed to 

be pulling over black driv-
ers when they are coming 
home from working on the 
night shift, and said it was 
a case of profi ling.

Harper was invited to 
meet with City Administra-
tor Dan Miner and Chief 
Crews, but she never con-
tacted Crews about a meet-
ing, the police chief said 
Thursday.

“When this came up, 
it caught me off guard,” 
Crews said. “We don’t oper-
ate that way.”

He prepared the re-
port and gave the council 
several department press 
releases. 

“We’ve had a real busy 
month, and the report 
doesn’t show all of it by 
far.”

Crews also said the de-
partment is making head-
way on the Wells Fargo 
Bank robbery case from 
April 28.

“We’ve got a very prom-
ising lead, and we’re still 
working the case,” Crews 

said. “I hope by next month 
I will be able to share some 
good news on that.”

The council also dis-
cussed the city’s Depart-
ment of Transportation 
Safety Funding with DOT 
representative Jonathon 
Harris.

Harris said sidewalk 
projects are considered 
in part based on how they 
improve safety, and recom-
mended the city’s safety 

Crews responds to harassment complaint

See COMPLAINT A2

Special To The News

Saturday the Vernon 
Community Center was 
the site of the annual Miss 
Firecracker Pageant.

Dozens of girls of all 
ages competed for crowns 
in numerous categories, 
with Lauren Jones winning 
the coveted title of Miss 
Firecracker.

Other winners included: 
Baby Miss was Leah 

Stuffl estreet, 1st runner 
up was Kelby Campbell, 
2nd runner up was Olivia 
Joiner and Photogenic was 
Braleigh Truette.

Toddler Miss was Alanah 
Bradford, 1st runner up 
was Payln Byers and 
Photogentic was Alanah 
Bradford.

Tiny Tot Miss was Kinley 
Kirkland, 1st runner up was 
Jadyn Pitts, 2nd runner up 
was Analeigha Ackerman 
and Photogenic was 
Analeigha Ackerman.

Future Little Miss was 
Lena Tice, 1st runner up 
was Isabella Randoza, 
2nd runner up was Emma 
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ESTO — Esto Fire Department, Holmes 
County Sheriff ’s Offi ce and the county fi re mar-
shal are investigating two fi res that occurred in 
Esto last weekend.

According to Esto Fire Chief Charles Corco-
ran the fi rst fi re happened on Friday, June 1, 
at around midnight in a vacant building at 1024 
U.S. Highway 79 in Esto.

Corcoran said he was confi dent to say that 
it was a case of arson in light of the evidence 
found at the scene.

“First of all it’s a vacant building,” said 
Corcoran. “That means that the building was 
unoccupied and the electricity and other utili-
ties had been turned off to the building. This 
eliminates the possibility that it was caused by 
faulty wiring, etc.”

Corcoran said with further investigation it 
was determined that someone had been living 
in the vacant building recently. 

He then explained that it was determined to 
be arson because of the location of the fi re.

“It couldn’t have been a cooking fi re because 
it’s in the back of the area, where it’s cluttered 
and away from the area where he was eating,” 
said Corcoran. “You can tell that the fi re was 
set deliberately.”

He said that the fi re was small scale and 
took very little water and manpower to put out.

The second fi re occurred on Saturday, June 
2, at 9:11 p.m. at The Esto Assembly of God 
Church, which has been unused since January.

This fi re was much bigger, requiring the ser-
vices of Pitman, Hartford, Graceville, Bonifay 
and Esto fi re departments until 3:30 the next 
morning.

“We used over 5,000 gallons of water and 
fi ve fi re departments on scene,” said Corcoran. 
“Bonifay stretched the line and protected the 
surrounding houses, Graceville stretched and 
operated the lines into the building and we had 
Pittman and Hartford as backup.”

Corcoran explained that without a fi re hy-
drant to draw water from, the fi re departments 
have to use their tankers and once one was 
empty another would take their place while the 
other fi lled back up and the process would re-
peat itself until the fi re was out.

“The fi re could have easily spread to the 
surrounding houses due to the dry conditions 
and there was a wooden fence so close to the 
church,” said Corcoran. “We had West Florida 
Electric out there in about 10 minutes to kill the 
power and secure the area from electrical is-
sues. This was a well contained fi re.”

Corcoran said that both fi res are still under 
investigation.

RANDAL SEYLER | The News

Washington County Chamber of Commerce held a ribbon cutting ceremony for INKfl iction 
Tattoo Gallery in Chipley on Thursday. The new business is both a tattoo parlor and art 
gallery and is owned by Danny “Q-Ball” Donofrio and Devon Phelps. Shop will be open 
from 1-9 p.m. Tuesday and Thursday, from 1-6 p.m. on Wednesday, 1-10 p.m. on Friday 
and noon to 10 p.m. on Saturday. The owners plan to show not only Donofrio’s art at the 
gallery but to feature other artists in the future.

RIBBON CUTTING

2 fi res under 
investigation 

in Esto

See PAGEANT A2

Deaf ministry holds 
yard sale

CHIPLEY — The Deaf 
Ministry of Shiloh Baptist 
Church will hold a yard 
sale from 9 a.m. to 4 
p.m. today, June 9,  in 
Javier’s Mexican Grill 
parking lot in Chipley. 
Proceeds will support 
Deaf Mission.

Vernon City Council 
meets Monday

VERNON — The Vernon 
City Council will meet 
at 7 p.m. Monday at 
Vernon City Hall.

School Board to meet 
Monday

CHIPLEY — The 
Washington County 
School Board will hold 
its regular June meeting 
Monday at 5 p.m. at the 
school board offi ce.

Watermelon Festival 
Pageant today

CHIPLEY — The 56th 
annual Panhandle 
Watermelon Pageant 
continues at 6:30 
p.m. today at the 
Washington County 
Agriculture Center.  
Door admission is $5 
per adult, admission is 
free to children 3 years 
of age and younger. 

For more information, 
call Teresa Bush at 
263-4744 or 850-
263-3072 or Sherry 
Saunders at 263-3554.

IN BRIEF

Johnson defeates 
Monster Mile
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Palyn Byers gets a 
helping hand from her 
mother during the Miss 
Firecracker Pageant in 
Vernon on June 2. Palyn 
was fi rst runner-up in her 
contest.
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Analiegha Ackerman, center, makes a point during 
the final lineup of the Tiny Tot Miss Firecracker 
competition in Vernon. Analeigha took second 
runner-up and photogenic in her category.

June 9th Main Street Tent Event 11AM – 2PM
No Contract, No Deposit, No Credit Check 

Buy it by the Day, Week or the Month. Come by 
for free Pizza and Soda and see what all the talk 
is about!

Mitchell Sight and Sound Located at Washington 
Square  850-638-4219  M-F 9-6 & Sat 9-4 Closed 
on Sundays

Swing by and check out our Main Street Broadband 
deals And our Car and Audio Specials! 

Public Notice
Notice is hereby given that the following 
property was seized in Washington County, 
Florida on February 6, 2012 for violation 
cited below.

2012-1818-000017-01 - 1999 Freight-
liner Tractor, VIN# 1FUPCXYB7Y-
DB30281 and VS@R Trailer, VIN# UYV-
S2539YM945520
19USC1595(a)  Bond Amount : $950.00

2012-1818-000021-01  - $156,490.00 in 
U.S. Currency
18USC981; 18USC1956/1957 and 
18USC1956(c)(7)(B)(i)

Anyone desiring to claim this property must 
appear at the Customhouse, Tampa, Florida, 
and FILE A LEGAL CLAIM for such prop-
erty within twenty (20) days from the date 
of first publication of this notice, in default 
of which the property will be forfeited and 
disposed of in accordance with the law. BY 
ORDER OF MARY ANN CRANFORD, 
FINES, PENALTIES, AND FORFEITURES 
OFFICER, TAMPA, FLORIDA.

Public Notice
Notice is hereby given that the 
following property was seized in 
Vernon, Florida, on February 6, 2012 
for violations cited below: 
2012-1818-000014:  2005 Ford F-250 
VIN# 1FTSW21P55EB53319 
19USC1595a(a)   Bond Amount 
$1,730.00
Anyone desiring to claim this 
property must appear at the Custom-
house, Tampa, Florida, and FILE A 
LEGAL CLAIM to such property 
within twenty (20) days from the date 
of first publication of this notice, in 
default of which the property will be 
forfeited and disposed of in accor-
dance with the law.  BY ORDER OF 
MARY ANN CRANFORD, FINES, 
PENALTIES, AND FORFEITURES 
OFFICER, TAMPA, FLORIDA.

Public Notice
Notice is hereby given that the follow-
ing property was seized in Washington 
County, Florida on February 6, 2012 
for violations cited below
2012-1818-000016 -  2005 
Dodge Ram 2500, VIN# 3D7K-
S28C26G105078
19USC1595(a)     Bond Amount: 
$1,177.00
Anyone desiring to claim this 
property must appear at the Custom-
house, Tampa, Florida, and FILE A 
LEGAL CLAIM for such property 
within twenty (20) days from the date 
of first publication of this notice, in 
default of which the property will be 
forfeited and disposed of in accor-
dance with the law.  BY ORDER OF 
MARY ANN CRANFORD, FINES, 
PENALTIES, AND FORFEITURES 
OFFICER, TAMPA, FLORIDA.

complaint from page A1
committee send in recom-
mendations for projects 
submitted to the state for 
financing.

When asked about fund-
ing for speed bumps, Har-
ris said DOT funds are 
available, but added that 
the funding is very com-
petitive. The same would 
go for DOT funding for traf-
fic controlling devices such 
as the speed trailers which 

use radar to tell drivers 
what their speed. Washing-
ton County had one of the 
trailers, but it is currently 
out of order, Crews said.

Crews added that his 
department had applied 
for DOT funding three or 
four times but had never 
received funding.

“They’d be more likely 
to give funding to the coun-
ty,” he said. 

Gurganus and Photogenic 
was Isabella Randoza.

Little Miss was Hannah 
Duke, 1st runner up was 
Harley Fromm, 2nd runner 
up was Lauryn Adams and 
Photogenic was Hannah 
Duke.

Young Miss was 
Brittany Stephens, 1st 
runner up was McKenzie 
Simpson, 2nd runner up 
was Mia Gauardiana.

Pre Teen Miss was 
Olivia Cotton, 1st runner 
up was Marissa White, 
2nd runner up was Jamie 

Campbell and Photogenic 
was Marissa White.

Teen Miss was Kristen 
Williams.

Junior Miss was Emily 
Cloud.

Miss was Lauren 
Jones.

Little Miss Patriotic 
was Marissa White.

Miss Patriotic was 
Kendall Mitchell.

Little Miss 
Independence was 
Isabella Randoza.

Miss Independence was 
Fallon Braxton.

Special to the News

Congratulations to our Community 
South Student of the Month award 
winners for May — Emily Curtright, 
Stephanie Gipson, Justice Stroud, and 
Nicholas McDonald. These students 
were nominated for their outstanding 
behavior and achievement. We are 
very proud of them and all of their 
accomplishments. 

This program was just one way 
that we were able to give back to our 
students for going above and beyond. 
The students were also very grateful 
for the honor. They had a wonderful 
time bowling, skating, playing 
billiards, and eating pizza at Rocket 
Lanes. 

May 21 – May 28, 2012
Robert Acree, 24, Panama City, 

violation of state probation on 
battery

Neatron Curry, 29, Chipley, ag-
gravated battery

Theresa Davidson, 36, Bonifay, 
petit theft

Jeffery Driggers, 33, Chipley, 
possession of cocaine, possession 
of controlled substance without a 
prescription

Michael Greenwell, 56, Chipley, 
petit theft

Lee Dell Kennedy, 44, Chipley, 

disturbing the peace
Benjamin Lee, 41, Bonifay, driv-

ing under the influence, refuse to 
submit to driving under the influ-
ence test, driving while license sus-
pended or revoked

John Loria, 29, Caryville, driving 
while license suspended or revoked

Timothy McDonald, 29, Niceville, 
driving under the influence

Jeff McGraw, 43, Chipley, driving 
while license suspended or revoked 
with knowledge, driving while li-
cense suspended or revoked habit-
ual offender, resist officer without 
violence

Brittany Pitts, 20, Bonifay, viola-
tion of state probation on posses-
sion of meth

John Richards, 24, Chipley, bat-
tery, resist officer without violence, 
reckless driving, driving under the 
influence

Jerry Thomas, 40, Headland Ala., 
Holmes County warrant for attach 
tag not assigned

Christie Thompson, 30, Miami, 
possession of marijuana with intent, 
possession of cocaine

Eddie Zimmerman, 39, Chipley, 
disorderly intoxication, indecent 
exposure

By S. BRADY CALHOUN
747-5075 | @sbradycalhoun

bcalhoun@pcnh.com 

lynn HaVen — A law 
enforcement leader can 
be called on at any time 
to make life or death 
decisions.

They have to be willing, 
they have to be ready and 
they have be well-trained, 
officials said Wednesday.

“We lead heroes,” said 
Maj. Tommy Ford of the 
Bay County Sheriff ’s Of-
fice. “The decisions we 
make can affect their lives 
as well as the public.”

Making sure they are 

ready and trained is why 
the Bay County Sheriff ’s 
Office and the Florida 
Sheriff ’s Association co-
hosted a Leadership for 
Operational Supervisors 
Course at BCSO head-
quarters in Lynn Haven 
this week.

Leaders from the Wash-
ington County Sheriff ’s Of-
fice were among officers 
from several agencies at-
tending the training.

The class helped offi-
cers hone their skills and 
gave them more of tools 
they need to do their jobs, 
Ford said.

“Learning doesn’t stop 

at passing the academy,” 
he added.

Law enforcement lead-
ers from eight area agen-
cies, including Sheriff 
Frank McKeithen and 
Jackson County Sheriff 
Lou Roberts, attended the 
course. The students tack-
led several different top-
ics, including “identifying 
factors critical to leader-
ship and employee super-
vision,” “understanding 
values, ethics and the con-
cept of principle-centered 
leadership” and “appli-
cation of a multicultural, 
multigenerational model 
of group development and 

leadership.”
The classes were led 

by Bill Burroughs of 
Talon International who 
brought 36 years of law 
enforcement, corporate 
leadership and profes-
sional training experience 
to the group.

Also attending were 
leaders from the Alachua 
County Sheriff ’s Office, 
the Franklin County Sher-
iff ’s Office, the Jackson 
County Sheriff ’s Office, 
the Orange County Cor-
rections Department, the 
Panama City Beach Police 
Department, the Walton 
County Sheriff ’s Office.

Friday was the final day of candidate qualifying. On Monday, 
the first official day of qualifying  Ken Naker, Candidate for Tax 
Collector, and Alan Bush, Candidate for County Commissioner 
District 1, were in the office of Carol Finch Griffin, Supervisor of 
Elections, to qualify.

BCSO holds leadership training

waSHington county aRReStS

candidate qualifyingStudent of  
tHe MontH

paGEant from page A1
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NOTICE OF QUALIFYING FOR THE 
CITY OF CHIPLEY

 GENERAL ELECTION
 AND

 REGISTRATION BOOK CLOSING

On Tuesday, August, 7, 2012, a General Election will be held for the 
City of Chipley at Chipley City Hall, 1442 Jackson Avenue. Term of 
office expires on September 30, 2012 for the following positions:  
Council Member Ward 1, Council Member Ward 4 and Council Mem-
ber at Large. These offices will be opened to qualified candidates. 
Qualifying for these offices will begin at 8:00 a.m., Monday, June 11, 
2012, and end at 4:00 p.m., Friday, June 15, 2012. The qualifying fee 
for each office is $252.00. Those wishing to qualify may do so with the 
City Clerk at Chipley City Hall during the above stated time period.

The Voter Registration books will close on July 9, 2012. All city 
residents within the city limits of Chipley, who are registered to vote 
by July 9, 2012, are eligible to vote in this election regardless of where 
you live in the city.

City elections are non-partisan and political party affiliation does not 
apply.

Please contact Patrice Yates, Asst. City Administrator/City Clerk 
at (850) 638-6350 should you have any questions or need other 
information regarding the upcoming city election.

Adult Art Instruction
June 23, 30, July 7 & 14 – $100

Saturday 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
Basics for Successful Painting (Oil)

Instructor: Keith Martin Johns
In every painting there are 
basic elements which are 
critical for a successful painting. 
In this 12-hour course we will 
explore the importance of 
establishing eye level, 
formatting your composition and 
learning the importance of line, 
value and color. You will learn how to prepare canvas panel, 
stretch and prime canvas. Begin your painting in the 
Renaissance method of the old masters.
Registration is required.

5422 Cliff St., Graceville
850-360-4908
linda@keithmartinjohns.com

Washington  County  Tourist  Development  Council (TDC)
Applicants needed to fill Seat # 5 for an unexpired term ending September 30, 2013, at 

which time the member would be eligible for appointment to a full 4-year term.  All seats on the 
Washington County TDC are unpaid volunteer positions.

Florida Statute 125.014, Tourist Development Tax, creates the TDC with members appointed 
by action of the Board of County Commissioners.  Subparagraph (4) (e) establishes that the 
TDC shall consist of nine (9) members with a minimum of 3 and a maximum of 4 being bed tax 
collectors within the county; 3 must be elected officials nominated by their respective boards 
with 1 representing the county commission, 1 representing the largest municipality, and 1 
representing another municipality; and 3 members must be from industries involved with tourism 
and/or hospitality or some other direct connection to tourism.  The normal term of appointment 
shall be four (4) years and terms are staggered so that no more than 3 seat terms expire in any 
year.   All TDC members shall be electors (registered voters) within the county.

Seat #5 on the Washington County TDC is designated for Tourism Industry or a Bed Tax 
Collector. 

Interested parties should send a resume and letter of application outlining their experience 
in activities related to the tourism, hospitality and/or related industries to the TDC office by 
June 18, 2012.  Washington County Tourist Development Council, P.O. Box 450, Chipley, FL 
32428-0450, or via email to  admin@visitwashingtoncountyfl.com.  Phone contact 638-6013.  
Interviews will be scheduled as soon after June 18, 2012, as possible.
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From Staff Reports

CHIPLEY — Roulhac Middle 
School announced academic 
award winners this week.

Named were:
All A’s in Civics: Finch, 

Kaylee, Arndt, Jacob, Gilbert, 
Grace, Glover, Nathan, 
Granger, Caitlin, Miles. 
Mackenzie, Munroe, Taylor, 
Padgett, Faith, Rhodes, Arielle, 
Smith, Cynthia, Walters, Ansleigh

All A’s in Language Arts: 
Boyett, Chase, Finch, Kaylee, 
Fleener, Elizabeth, Gage, Sawyer, 
Gilbert, Grace, Glover, Nathan, 
Granger, Caitlin, Guster, Kierra, 
Hamilton, Stacey, Hinson, 
Lauryl Grace, Kinman, Lauren, 
Mantesta, Korinna Mathews, 
Gianna, Munroe, Taylor, Padgett, 
Faith Senkle, Kristin, Smith, 
Cynthia, Thacker, Zoe, Thompson, 
Angel, Waldrip, Jared, and Walters 
Ansleigh 

All A’s in Math: Gage, 
Sawyer, Glover, Nathan, Kincaid, 
Madison, Mathews, Gianna, Miles, 
Mackenzie, Moore, Hannah, 
Munroe, Taylor, Padgett, Faith, 

Rhodes, Kylee and Sapp, Austin            
Highest Average/P. Carter: 

Mackenzie Miles
Highest Average/L. Owen: 

Madison Kent
Highest Average/A. Owens: 

Caitlin Granger
Highest Average/K. Nelson: 

Karena Bell, and Brian McQuaig
Highest Average/J. Wilson: 

Karena Bell
Citizenship Award: Dylan 

Dalton and Danielle Henry
Highest Average/M. Whitson: 

Caitlin Granger
Highest Average/J. Wilson: 

Karena Bell
All A’s in Personal 

Development: Boyett, William 
Chase, Dalton, Dylan, Fleener, 
Elizabeth, Hinson, Lauryl Grace, 
King, Trinity, Mathews, Gianna, 
Miles, Mackenzie, Moore, 
Hannah, Morales, Lewis, Padgett, 
Faith, Pettis, Hunter, Rowell, 
Grant, Sims, Adrian, Speights, 
Cori, Thacker, Zoe, Thurman, 
Trey, Walters, Ansleigh, Woodham, 
Kierra, and Ziolkowski, Julie 
Advanced Academics; Bonner, 
Alyssa, Collins, Jayde, Glover, 
Nathan, Jones, Dalls, Kincaid, 

Madison, Mitchell, Kristian, 
Munroe, Taylor, Sapp, Austin and 
Williams, Ric’Kina

Met AR Goal Each Nine 
Weeks: Binmahfooz, Yusuf, Birge, 
Josh Blackmon, Rashadd, Bonner, 
Alyssa, Boyett, William, Bridges, 
Abbie, Brown, Kaylie, Carter, 
Dylan, Crawford, Nathan, DePaul, 
Braydon, Edenfi eld, Ethan, Finch, 
Kaylee, Fleener, Elizabeth, Gage, 
Sawyer, Gilbert, Gracie, Glover, 
Nathan, Granger, Caitlin, Gray, 
Austin, Guster, Kierra, Massey, 
Gideon Harden, Beau, Harrington, 
Chris, Hinson, Lauryl Grace,  
Jones, Dallas, King, Trinity, Kriser, 
Vince, Malloy, Jonathan, Mathews, 
Gianna, Miles, Mackenzie, 
Moore, Hannah, Morales, Lewis, 
Newsome, Shelby, O’Neal, Kayla, 
Padgett, Faith,  Pettis, Hunter,  
Rhodes, Arielle, Rhodes, Kylee, 
Sapp, Austin, Seaman, Claudia, 
Smith, Cynthia, Thompson, 
Angel, Walters, Ansleigh, 
Wheeler, Heather, Williams, 
Krisen, Williams, Ric’Kina and 
Ziolkoswski, Julie

Highest Average/G. 
Draayom: Lauryl Grace Hinson 

Highest Average/D. Reed-

Gray: Julie Ziolkowski 
Highest Average/J. 

Strickland: Ansleigh Walters 
Top AR Points: Rashadd 

Blackmon - 576.6, Julie Ziolkowski 
– 490 and Kierra Guster - 249.1 

All A’s in Science: Dalton, 
Dylan, Finch, Kaylee, Gage, 
Sawyer, Gilbert, Grace, Granger, 
Caitlin, Hinson, Lauryl Grace, 
Hobby, Tyler, Kent, Madison, 
Kincade, Madison, Miles, 
Mackenzie, Padgett, Faith, Sapp, 
Austin and Walters, Ansleigh

Presidential Fitness Award: 
Arndt, Jacob, Bell, Karena, 
Bellamy, Ja’Lisa, Binmahfooz, 
Yusuf, Bonner, Alyssa, Brown, 
Kaylie, Campbell, Justin, Carter, 
Joel, Chamberlain, Kallee, Clark, 
James, Davis, Alex, DePaul, 
Brayden, Donaldson, Sierra, 
Edenfi eld, Ethan, Finch, Kaylee, 
Granger, Caitlin, Griffi n, Cara, 
Harris, Alex, Henry, Danielle, 
Hodges, Tripp, Holley, Austin, 
Hutching, Caleb, Kent, Madison, 
Kincaid, Madison, King, Trinity, 
Lowery, Sydni, Mathews, Gianna, 
Miles, McKenzie, Mitchell, 
Kristan, Montalvo, Justina, 
Padgett, Faith, Padgett, Julian, 

Reyes, Maria, Rhodes, Arielle, 
Rodgers, Scarlett, Rowell, Grant, 
Sims, Adrian, Thurman, Trey, 
Walters, Ansleigh, Williams, Katie, 
Williams, Kristin, Wilson, Sarah 
and Woodham, Kierra 

Student Council: Bau, 
Madison/President, Padgett, 
Faith/ VP, Munroe, Taylor/Rep 
at Large, Bell, Karena, DePaul, 
Braydon, Fleener, Elisabeth, 
Formby, Job, Hinson, Lauryl 
Grace, Lee, Tiffany, Lowery, Sydni 
and Walters, Ansleigh

Highest Average/J. Booth: 
Caitlin Granger

Highest Average/A. 
Clemmons: Mackenzie Miles

Highest Average/K. Nelson: 
Tyler Hobby

Mrs. Alderman Reading 
All A’s All Year: Glover, 
Nathan, Granger, Caitlin, Miles, 
Mackenzie, Padgett, Faith, Smith, 
Cynthis, Walters, Ansleigh and 
Ziolkowski, Julie

Mrs. Daniels Reading All 
A’s All Year: Henry, Danielle, 
Mantesta, Korinna, Montvalo, 
Justina and Waldrip, Jared

Highest Average: Caitlin 
Granger.

Roulhac Middle School announces academic awards

By CATHRINE LAMB
638-0212 | @CatsPitstop

clamb@chipleypaper.com

Jimmie Johnson challenged 
the Monster Mile in Dover last 
weekend and came out the victor. 
This was Johnson’s seventh win 
at Dover giving him the privilege 
of being in the same category 
with some of the best drivers 
in NASCAR history. Way to go 
Jimmie.

If you are one of the many 
NASCAR fans saying there 
haven’t been enough of the “Big 
Ones,” that all changed on the 
Monster Mile last weekend. It 
started in lap nine, which brought 
out the fi rst caution and the one 
and only red fl ag of the race, when 
there were 13 cars taken out in 
what some are calling the biggest 
wreck of the season so far. 

Those taken out in that 
accident were Tony Stewart, who 
later came back onto the tack and 
fi nished the race, Landon Cassill, 
David Gilliland, Juan Pablo 
Montoya, Casey Mears, Travis 

Kvapil, Michael McDowell, Dave 
Blaney, Scott Speed, Stephen 
Leicht, Reed Sorenson and Joe 
Nemechek. All drivers thought 
their cars were running great. 

That was the major accident 
of the day and it happened early 
there were still six other cautions 
during the race. There were three 
cautions caused by blown engines, 
in lap 111 for caution number two 
was David Rutimann’s engine, 

lap 345 was the sixth caution it 
was out because of Kyle Busch’s 
engine and then in lap 363 for the 
seventh and fi nal caution of the 
race Jeff Burton’s engine blew. 
There was only one other wreck 
during the race that brought out 
caution number three on lap 164, 
when Carl Edwards plowed the 
wall. The other two cautions, 
caution four on lap 226 and caution 
fi ve on lap 340, were brought out 
for debris on the track.

In Other NASCAR News, Kurt 
Busch was at it again in Dover 
after the Nationwide Race, he 
just doesn’t know when to walk 
away. Busch was involved in an 
altercation with Sporting News 
reporter Bob Pockrass. Pockrass 
was asking Kurt about his on 
going run-in with Justin Allgaier 
during last Saturday’s race at 
Dover, and if being on probation 
had anything to do with the way 
he handled it. Kurt in return 
answered “It (probation) refrains 
me from beating the (expletive) 
out of you right now because you 
ask me stupid questions.” Busch 

went on to say, “But since I’m 
on probation, I suppose that’s 
improper to say as well.”

Kurt has been suspended from 
all NASCAR sanctioned events 
until June 13 and his probation 
has been extended until Dec. 31.

As most of us know Kurt is 
going through a divorce. But 
really is that any reason to be a 
jerk. Kurt, leave your personal 
business at home or at least in 
your motor home, and keep it off 

the track. I know there are still 
fans out there but I have a feeling 
that he is losing more and more 
everyday because of his behavior. 

Mr. Finch has reached an 
agreement with David Reutimann 
to drive the No. 51 of Phoenix 
Racing Sunday at Pocono. 

There will be no Nationwide 
race today. The Pocono 400 will 
begin at 12:18 p.m. Sunday. The 
race will be aired on TNT. Last 
year’s winner was Jeff Gordon.

RESULTS FROM DOVER 
— SPRINT CUP

1. Jimmie Johnson
2, Kevin Harvick
3. Matt Kenseth
4. Dale Earnhardt Jr. 
5. Clint Bowyer
6. Aric Almirola
7. Martin Truex Jr.
8. Joey Logano
9. Kasey Kahne
10. Marcos Ambrose

STANDINGS AFTER 
DOVER — SPRINT CUP

1. Greg Biffl e
2. Matt Kenseth -1
3. Dale Earnhardt Jr. -10
4. Denny Hamlin -22
5. Jimmie Johnson -33
6. Martin Truex Jr. -45
7. Kevin Harvick -46
8. Tony Stewart -79
9. Kyle Busch – 80
10. Clint Bowyer -81

Johnson challenges and defeats the Monster Mile
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Bonifay First United 
Methodist Church to 

Hold VBS
BONIFAY — Bonifay First 

United Methodist Church 
invites children who have 
completed Kindergarten 
through fi fth grade to VBS 
from 5:30-8 p.m. on June 
11-15. 

This year’s theme is 
“Operation Overboard: 
Dive Deep With God.”   It is 
an interactive, energizing, 
Bible-based program that 
gives children a chance 
to go deep in their faith.  
Set in an exciting aquatic 
environment, a deep-
sea adventure awaits as 

children meet people of 
deep faith from the Bible.  
Each night will include 
Discovery Time, crafts, 
recreation and Bible 
story/drama.  

Parents can pre-
register their children 
from 4-6 p.m., on Sunday, 
June 10. The VBS closing 
program will be held at 
10:45 a.m., on Sunday, June 
17. A cookout will follow 
the program. Bonifay 
FUMC is at the corner of 
Virginia and Oklahoma 
Avenues, directly across 
from the Courthouse.  For 
questions or to request 
transportation, please 
contact the church 

offi ce at 547-3785.

Otter Creek Presents 
the Webbs

PONCE DE LEON — The 
Webbs, from Chipley, will 
be singing at 7 p.m. on 
June 16 at Otter Creek 
Methodist Church. The 
church is four miles north 
of Ponce de Leon off U.S. 
Highway 81.

New Orange Gospel 
Jamboree

CHIPLEY — New Orange 
Baptist Church will hold 
their monthly Gospel Jam 
at 6:30 p.m. on Saturday, 
June 16. A covered dish 
dinner will follow the sing. 
For more information or 
directions to the  church 
call 638-1166 or 773-0020.

American Classics
BONIFAY — Red Hill 

United Methodist Church 
in Bonifay would like you 
to bring your dad out on 
Father’s Day weekend 
from 10 - 2 p.m. on June 16 
to see all the Hotrod and 
Classic American cars. 
There will be hotdogs, 
hamburgers, and fun 
for the whole family. 
Music will be provided by 
Wrights Creek Bluegrass. 
This is a free event. For 
more information call 
Pastor Rich at 547-3780 or 
630-3134.

Wausau Assembly of 
God VBS

WAUSAU — Wausau 
Assembly of God will 
be holding VBS Sonsurf 
Beach Bash, June 18-
22. VBS will start at 6:30 
p.m. each night, parent 
night will be held on 
Friday night. At parent 
night there will be hot 
dogs, chips, and cake 
for the kids. There will 
also be a water slide 
and bounce house. The 
church is on U.S. Highway 
77 in Wausau. For more 
information, call 638-0883 
or 625-6656.

Hickory Hill Baptist 
Church Invites 

Children to their 
Vacation Bible School

A summer kids’ 
Vacation Bible School 
called Sky will be held 
from 5:30 to 8:30 p.m. from 
June  18-22 at Hickory Hill 
Baptist Church. 

At Sky, faith and 
imagination soar as kids 
discover that everything 
is possible with God. Kids 
participate in memorable 
Bible-learning activities, 
sing catchy songs, play 
teamwork-building 
games, make and dig 
into yummy treats, and 
experience electrifying 
Bible adventures. Plus, 
kids will learn to look for 

evidence of God all around 
them through something 
called God Sightings. Sky 
is for kids from 4 years old 
to 12 years old. For more 
information, call 333-0729. 

Mount Pleasant 
Assembly of God 

Church to Hold VBS
WESTVILLE — Mount 

Pleasant Assembly of 
God Church will hold VBS 
from 6 to 8:30 p.m. on June 
25-29. VBS is for children 
Preschool through the 
fi fth grade. This years 
VBS is entitled “Amazing 
Desert Journey.” For more 
information call 956-4300.

New Bethany 
Assembly of God to 

Hold VBS
VERNON — New Bethany 

Assembly of God in Vernon 
will hold VBS from 6-8 p.m. 
June 25–27. This years 
VBS is entitled “Created 
for a Purpose.” For more 
information, call Amy Hall 
at 263-4006.

Atlantic Children’s 
Chorale to perform at 

St. Luke’s
MARIANNA — St. Luke’s 

Episcopal Church will 
welcome the Atlantic 
Children’s Chorale Twenty 

Voices from Vero Beach 
as part of their Fine Arts 
Series at 6 p.m. on June 17. 
For more information call 
482-2431.

Victory Tabernacle 
to hold ladies revival 

conference
HARTFORD, Ala. — Victory 

Tabernacle Church 
of Hartford, Ala., will 
hold a Ladies Revival 
Conference, at 7 p.m. 
nightly from June 21-23. 
The special guest speaker 
will be Sister Crissy Baxley 
from Noma Assembly of 
God. For more information 
or directions to the church 
call 334-588-2838.

“God’s Power” Art 
Day Camp

The Chipley First 
Presbyterian Church is 
proud to announce “God’s 
Power” an Art Day Camp 
“Bible School 2012”. The 
Day Camp will run from 
9:30-11:30 a.m. on Aug. 6-
10. Enrollment is limited 
to 20 students in grades 
3-8. Students must pre-
register on or before 
July 15. Registration 
forms are available in 
the church offi ce and at 
chipley1stpres.org. For 
more information or 
questions email the Art 
Camp Director at wvanl@
bellsouth.net.  
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Everybody is a teacher. 
Each person, in his or her 
own way, has something 
to teach others. Even 
small children can teach 
us lessons. I’ve 
taught classes in a 
university setting, 
and I’ve taught 
in one-on-one 
tutoring sessions. 
But I’ve also been 
a teacher without 
even realizing it, 
and so have you. 
By that, I mean 
there are things 
we do every day that are 
being observed by others, 
whether we’re aware of it 
or not. 

In the classroom of life, 
there are both teachers and 
students. We’ve all played 
both roles. But sometimes, 
we overlook our roles as 
teachers. 

If you think that you 
don’t have anything worth 
teaching, think again. 

Instead of focusing on what 
we can’t teach, maybe it’s 
time to consider the skills 
and ideas we have that 
are worth passing along 

to others. If you’ve 
ever shown someone 
how to change a fl at 
tire, play a musical 
instrument, cook 
a meal, plant a 
fl ower, catch a fi sh 
or say a prayer, 
congratulations, 
you’re a teacher. 

And, as I’ve 
already noted, 

you’re a teacher whether 
you’re aware of it or not. 
Somebody, somewhere is 
observing your behavior. 
There are times when you 
might not have realized 
that you were teaching a 
lesson, but you were. Some 
of those lessons were very 
good ones. Others were, 
perhaps, less than optimal. 

Unfortunately, there’s 
also such a thing as 

negative teaching. If you 
teach others through your 
actions that it’s okay to be 
spiteful, people will learn 
something from that. Kids, 
in particular, are quick 
learners. What are they 
learning from parents who 
constantly act as if their 
own children are horrible, 
unwanted burdens? 
What do we, as a society, 
learn from extremism, 
discrimination, impatience 
or constant negativity?

What are people 
learning from you? 

Take inventory of what 
you have that’s worth 
teaching. There’s more 
than you might think. You 
might be able to teach 
complex mathematical 
equations, or you could 
teach someone to bake a 
pie. You can teach a child 
to throw a softball, or help 
someone from another 
country improve their 
English. You can teach 

knitting, gardening, sewing, 
mechanics, anything at 
all. Use your imagination. 
Try volunteering your 
time to help others learn 
something new. 

Likewise, take stock 
of what you don’t want to 
teach others. If you have a 
problem with your temper, 
just remember that every 
time you lose your cool, 
somebody’s watching. 
When you behave in a 
rude, irrational or hostile 
manner, you can rest 
assured that someone will 
notice. The person noticing 
might be your own child 
or a total stranger, but 
somebody’s going to walk 
away with an impression. 

Many religions teach 
that humans are being 
directly observed by God. 
So when you’re chewing 
out that checkout clerk 
at the convenience store, 
just remember that God 
created that person. The 

same divine force that 
created the beauty of the 
rising sun also made this 
human being standing 
in front of you, the one 
you’re now treating like 
dirt. That’s a creation of 
God you’re trashing. And 
teaching. Do you really 
want to teach people 
that it’s okay to curse at 
someone because your 
15-cent coupon expired 
yesterday, or because you 
got a few pickle slices on 
your burger when you 
didn’t order it that way? 

The good news is that 
nearly all situations can 
be turned around. Maybe 
you can teach, instead, that 
it’s possible to be polite 
and cheerful even when 
you don’t get your own 
way. You can teach others 
that they, too, can remain 
positive when facing 
disappointments both 
large and small. If you’ve 
taught some negative 

lessons in the past, don’t 
worry. Any good teacher 
knows that it’s never too 
late to change lesson plans. 
Just remember that your 
students, some of whom 
you may never know by 
name, are watching your 
example. Be sure to set a 
good one. 

Recently, many people 
across the nation — and in 
our local area — graduated 
from school. They’ve now 
completed their studies at 
that particular institution. 
But with every ending 
comes a beginning. New 
doors will open for them. 
There may be a different 
school to attend now, but 
even if these graduates 
never set foot in another 
classroom, they’re 
still students. That’s 
because we never stop 
being students in life’s 
classroom. 

And we’ll never stop 
being teachers, either. 

SHANNON 
SEYLER

Faithfully Yours

We are all teachers in our own way

Library hours
Wausau Library
Monday: 10 a.m. to 3 

p.m.
Tuesday: 1-6 p.m. 
Wednesday: Closed
Thursday: 1-6 p.m.
Friday: Closed
Saturday: Closed
Sunday: Closed

Holmes County Library 
(Bonifay)

Monday: Closed
Tuesday: 8 a.m. to 5 

p.m.
Wednesday: 8 a.m. to 5 

p.m.
Thursday: 8 a.m. to 5 

p.m.
Friday: 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.
Saturday: 8 a.m. to noon
Sunday: Closed

Washington County Library 
(Chipley)

Monday: 9 a.m. to 6 p.m.
Tuesday: 9 a.m. to 6 p.m.
Wednesday: 9 a.m. to 6 

p.m.
Thursday: 9 a.m. to 6 

p.m.
Friday: 9 a.m. to 1 p.m.
Saturday: Closed

Sunday: Closed

Vernon Library
Monday: Closed
Tuesday: 1-6 p.m.
Wednesday: 1-6 p.m.
Thursday: Closed
Friday: 10 a.m. to 3 p.m.
Saturday: Closed
Sunday: Closed

Sunny Hills Library
Monday: 1-6 p.m.
Tuesday: Closed
Wednesday: 1-6 p.m.
Thursday: Closed
Friday: Closed
Saturday: Closed
Sunday: Closed

MONDAY
10 a.m. to noon: 

Holmes Council on Aging 
provides bingo, exercise, 
games, activities, hot 
meals and socialization.

11 a.m.: Washington 
Council on Aging 
(Chipley) senior lunches; 
for reservations, call 638-
6217. Donations accepted.

6 p.m.: Writers Group 
meets the first Monday 
each month (unless a 

holiday) at 6 p.m. at the 
Chipley library.

6-7:30 p.m.: Salvation 
Army Domestic Violence 
and Rape Crisis Program 
(SADVP) hosts a 
domestic violence support 
group at the SADVP 
Rural Outreach office, 
1461 S. Railroad Ave., 
Apartment 1, in Chipley. 
Call Emma or Jess at 
415-5999.

TUESDAY
10 a.m. to noon: 

Holmes Council on Aging 
provides hot meals and 
socialization.

11 a.m.: Washington 
Council on Aging 
(Chipley) senior lunches; 
for reservations, call 638-
6217. Donations accepted.

Noon: Chipley Kiwanis 
Club meeting.

Noon: Alcoholics 
Anonymous open meeting, 
New Life Assembly 
Fellowship Hall, Chipley.

5 p.m.: BINGO at St. 
Joseph Catholic Church 
games start at 6:25 p.m. 
Call 638-451.

6 p.m.: Holmes County 
Commission meets second 
Tuesdays.

7 p.m.: Narcotics 
Anonymous meeting, 
Blessed Trinity Catholic 
Church on County Road 
177A.

WEDNESDAY
10 a.m. to noon:  

Holmes Council on Aging 
provides hot meals and 
socialization.

10 a.m. to 2 p.m.: The 
Vernon Historical Society 
Museum is open to the 
public from 10 a.m. to 2 
p.m. Meetings are fourth 
Wednesdays at 2 p.m.

11 a.m.: Washington 
Council on Aging (Chipley) 
senior lunches; for 
reservations, call 638-6217. 
Donations accepted.

1 p.m.: Line dancing, 
Washington Council on 
Aging in Chipley.

7 p.m.: Depression and 
Bipolar Support Group 
meets at First Baptist 
Church educational annex 
building in Bonifay. Call 
547-4397.

HAVE SOMETHING TO SAY?
Letters to the editor and comments on Web versions 

of news stories are welcomed.
Letters are edited only for grammar, spelling, 

clarity, space and consistency, but we ask that they 
be limited to 300 words where possible. Letter writers 
are asked to provide a home address and daytime 
telephone number (neither is printed) for verifi cation 
purposes.

Letters may be sent to 1364 N. Railroad Ave., 
Chipley, FL 32428 or emailed to news@chipleypaper.
com. Please specify if the 
letter should be printed in the 
Washington County News or 
Holmes County Times-Advertiser.

Questions? Call 638-0212.

Faith BRIEFS

Community CALENDAR
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Owens—McFatter 
Reunion

The annual Owens-
McFatter cousin reunion 
will be at 11 a.m. on 
June 9 in the Bonnett 
Pond Church Fellowship 
Hall. The church is at 
2680 Bonnett Pond Road 
between Wausau and 
Vernon.

Worley Reunion
The annual Worley 

reunion will be held from 
10 a.m. to 2 p.m. on June 
10 at the Civic Center 
in Graceville. Bring a 
well-filled basket of food. 
Family and friends are 
invited. If you have any 
old family photographs, 
please bring them along 
to share. For more 
information, call Ellen 
Faircloth at 547-4093.

New Hope  
Non-Partisan  
Political Rally

NEW HOPE —the New 
Hope Watch and Fire 
Department will host the 
2012 Catalpa Festival, 
a  non-partisan political 
rally and cookout, on 
June 9. We will serve fish 
and chicken plates for a 
$6 donation from 2-5 p.m. 
The guest speaking will 
be from 5-7 p.m. and we 
will also announce the 
winners of the silent cake 
auction during this time. 
The event is at 179A U.S. 
Highway 2.

Washington County 
Library to Hold 1st 

Adult Summer  
Read Program

The Washington 
County Public Library 
will hold their first Adult 
Summer Read Program 
“Between the Covers” 
starting on June 12 and 
running through July. 
Events will be held at 6 
p.m. on the second and 
fourth Tuesdays. Come 
on June 12 to register and 
stay for the program to 
discuss the best romance 
reads and watch a classic 
romance movie. The first 
25 to register at the event 
will receive a goodie bag. 
Refreshments will be 
served. If you can’t make 
it to the events, don’t 
worry. Just register and 
start reading. Drawings 
will be held at the end of 
June and July. You may 
win a Kindle or a $75 
Barnes and Noble gift 
card.

For more information, 
or to pre-register for 
the program please call 
Renae at 638-1314 or email 
requests@wcplfl.com.

Shaddia Shrine 
Temple to Hold 

Gospel Sing 
PANAMA CITY — The 

Shaddai Shrine Temple 
in Panama City will 
be holding a good 
old Southern Gospel 
Sing from 4-6 p.m. on 
June 16. There will be 
performances by Terry 
Davis formerly of the 
Florida Boys Quartet and 
local talent by Marshal 
and Linda Smith, Saved 
by Grace, Joe Paul, Deb 
Collins, and The Love 
Notes. Admission is $5 
per person.

 

Lunch and Learn 
BONIFAY — A Lunch 

and Learn will be at 12:30 
on June 21 at Bonifay 
Nursing and Rehab 
Center in the Regency 
Dining Room. Come join 
us for lunch and learn 
about what growing 
older means to your 
elderly family, friends and 
neighbors and how to best 
relate to them. The guest 
speaker will be Glenda 
Swearingen, an Elder 
Law Attorney

Please RSVP to 
Rachael Locke at 547-9289 
by June 14.

Shaddai Shrine 
Temple to Hold 

Summer Steak Night
PANAMA CITY — The 

Shaddai Shrine Temple 
in Panama City will be 
holding Summer Steak 
Night on June 23 at the 
temple. Dinner will be 
from 6-8 p.m. and will 
be followed by music 
and dancing. Dinner will 
consist of Rib Eye Steaks 
cooked to order, salad, 
baked potatoes, veggies 
and a dessert. Tickets are 
$30 per couple or $120 for 
table of eight. For more 
information, call 866-0076 
or 258-5032.

Washington County 
Arts Council

CHIPLEY — The 
Washington County Arts 
Council invites all local 
artists to share their 
paintings, drawings, 
sculptures, textiles or 
ceramics at the Annual 
Panhandle Watermelon 
Festival Art Show and 
Sale, from 10 a.m. to 4 
p.m. on June 23. The Art 
Show and Sale will be 
held in the west wing of 
the Ag Center in Chipley.

56 annual Panhandle 
Watermelon Festival

CHIPLEY — The 56 
annual Panhandle 
Watermelon Festival 
will be held on June 22 
and 23. From 6-9 p.m. on 
June 22 at Pal’s Park, 
Chad Street and country 
star Mark Chesnutt will 
be performing. On June 
23 starting a 10 a.m. 
there will be a parade 
downtown. After the 
parade head over to the 
Washington County Ag 
Center on U.S. Highway 
90 west, for performances 
by Big Bend Bluegrass, 
and Marty Rabon. 
This is a free event. 
For more information, 
visit www.panhandle-
watermelonfestival.com 
or call 638-6180.

Sidewalk Art Fair
BONIFAY — Bring your 

artwork and easel to paint 
at the Sidewalk Art Fair 
in Bonifay. The art fair 
will be located at 110 W. 
Pennsylvania Avenue, 
Bonifay.  There will be 
art displays of handmade 
jewelry, paintings of 
oil, watercolor, pencil 
drawings, photographs, 
and wood carving at 
the Sidewalk Art Fair 
from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m., on 
Saturday, June 23. 

Raffle tickets will be 
drawn, and pieces of 
artwork will be bid on.  
Free drinks, note cards, 
art class coupons, coupon 
for free art display, and 
balloons. Refreshments 
will be provided. Come 
and Join with us. 

For more information, 
call 329-8381 or 
send a message to 
laurdendavis@gmail.
com. We are on Facebook 
to find us type in and 
search Laurden-Davis Art 
Gallery.

Camp Kesem
Camp Kesem is a camp 

or children ages 6 to 13 
who have a parent who 
has died from cancer, is 
currently in treatment for 
cancer or is in remission 
form cancer. Cam Kesem 
will take place Aug. 12-17, 
at an American Camping 
Association accredited 
campsite no more than 
four hours from the FSU 
campus. Transportation 
to and from camp will be 
provided.

The mission of Camp 
Kesem is to provide a 
student run summer 
camp program for 
children who have or had 
a parent with cancer, 
where campers build 
self-esteem and gain 
support from peers facing 
similar challenges. With 
a camp counselor ration 

of 2:1, campers receive 
the special attention and 
support that would not 
receive at a regular camp. 

Professional 
staff includes nurse, 
psychotherapist and a 
camp advisor and no 
less than 16 volunteer 
counselors from FSU.

Cam Kesem is 
provided free of charge 
to all families due to 
the financial burden 
experienced by families 
coping with cancer. The 
program is made possible 
form LIVESTRONG, 
the Lance Armstrong 
Foundation.

Applicants are on a 
first come first serve 
basis. Deadline to apply 
is June 1. If you have any 
questions or would like an 
application for this camp, 
call Heather Shelby at 
415-8119, or email her at 
hshelby@nfch.org.

Health Department 
offers free Zumba 

classes
BONIFAY — Community 

Zumba classes (Latino 
dancing) will be offered 
every Tuesday night from 
now until June 26 at the 
Bonifay Rec. Center. 

Classes are free and 
will take place from 6-7 
p.m. The instructor is 
Justin Cox out of Panama 
City. Zumba is a great 
workout. No Registration 
is required.

LVWC Tutor Drive
CHIPLEY — The Literacy 

Volunteers of Washington 
County will be holding 
a tutor drive from now 
through June. Volunteer 
your time and help 
support Washington 
County. Literacy sites 
are in Chipley at WHTC, 
in Caryville at the civic 
center and town hall, in 
Vernon city hall room 
2, in Greenhead at the 
First Baptist Church of 
Greenhead, and at the 
County Oaks Volunteer 
Fire Department.

The Literacy 
Volunteers of Washington 
County programs are 
free of charge and our 
certified tutors are 
dedicated to preparing 
students to reach their 
goals. Whether they need 
reading, math, English 
as a second language 
or help in preparing 
for their GED test. The 
Literacy volunteers 
are always available 
to assist them. We are 
always on the lookout for 
tutors and students. For 
more information, call 
Mairanda King at 638-
6317 or 373-3787.

Northwest Florida 
Community Hospital 
to Hold Blood Drive

CHIPLEY — NFCH 
will hold a Blood Drive, 
with the Southeastern 
Community Blood Center 
from 9 a.m. to 3 p.m., 
June 29. To donate you 
must show ID, and weigh 
at least 110 pounds. 
Come out and donate 
and receive your Save 
a Life T-shirt. For more 
information call Heather 
Shelby at 415-8119.

Bonifay Bulldogs to 
Host New Orleans 

Saints
BONIFAY — The Bonifay 

Bulldogs will be hosting 
The Saints Experience 
with special guests the 
New Orleans Saints, 
June 25 – June 29 for 
a junior football camp. 
All children must be 
between the ages of 5 
and 13 years old. An NFL 
punt, pass and kick event 
will be held on Family 
Fun Day June 30. The 
cost for camp is $100 per 
child and includes lunch 
everyday and a camp T-
shirt. The camp will be 
held at Memorial Field in 

Bonifay. Payment plans 
are available and a $10 
discount for any child 
who’s parent volunteers 
at the camp. For more 
information, call Toyna 
Smith at 347-804-0757 or 
Andrea Fuller at 768-2142, 
you may also email us at 
bonifaybulldogs@yahoo.
com. 

Registration for 
Bonifay Bulldogs  
Pee-Wee Football
BONIFAY— The Bonifay 

Bulldogs Pee Wee 
Football Association is a 
non-profit organization. 
Our mission is to 
provide the youth in 
our area a positive 
and safe football and 
cheerleading experience 
that develops their 
individual skills, physical 
fitness, competitive spirit, 
sportsmanship and ability 
to contribute as part of 
a team. It is the intent 
of our organization to 
provide the participating 
child an opportunity 
to play competitive 
tackle football in a safe, 
structured and enjoyable 
environment. Register 
your child from June 1 to 
July 1 for $30. After July 
1 registration will be $40. 
For more information, 
call Coach Bo at 768-1855.

Firecracker Day
VERNON — Firecracker 

Day will be held on 
July 4 at the Vernon 
Sportsplex on Moss Hill 
Road in Vernon. For 
more information call 
535-2444 or visit www.
vernonflorida.net.

Orange Hill July 4 
Family Celebration

CHIPLEY — The Orange 
Hill July 4 Family 
Celebration will be held 
on July 4, at the Orange 
Hill Volunteer Fire 
Department. For more 
information visit www.
facebook.com/ohvfd.

Life at the Landings 
and Beyond

DEFUNIAK SPRINGS Grit & 
Grace, Inc. would like to 
invite everyone to their 
2012 production of “Life 
at the Landings ...and 
Beyond.” Show times will 
be at 7 p.m., July 20 and 
21 and at 2 p.m. on July 
22. Seating is limited. 
Tickets are on sale now 
and can be reserved 
by calling 270-7008 or 

by logging on to www.
gritandgrace.org. They 
may also be purchased 
at the door 30 minutes 
prior to curtain call if still 
available.

Senior Group going 
on Alaska Cruise
WASHINGTON/HOLMES 

COUNTY — Senior Group 
will be going on Cruise 
to Alaska and a tour of 
the North West Land, 
on July 14-28. For more 
information, call Merita 
Stanley at 594-9980.

Washington County 
Library Presents “It 
Pays to Read” 2012

CHIPLEY — The 
Washington County 
Public Library will be 
holding “Dream Big” 
their 2012 “It Pays to 
Read” summer reading 
program for Washington 
County Students. 
Programs will be held 
at the Chipley Library 
beginning on Thursday 
June 7. Programs will 
be held starting at 10:30 
a.m. and at 2 p.m.  For 
the Country Oaks Branch 
programs will start on 
July 12 at 10:30 a.m. and 
the Sunny Hills programs 
will be at 2 p.m. for older 
students. To have you 
name entered in the 
drawing you must attend 
Thursday programs. It 
Pays To Read store is 
open to all Washington 
County Students.

For more information, 
call 638-1314.

Wausau Fun Day and 
Possum Festival
WAUSAU — The Wausau 

Fun Day and Possum 
Festival will be held 
Aug. 3-4 at the Dalton 
Carter Community 
Center in Wausau. For 
more information, call 
638-1781 or visit www.
wausaupossumfestival.
com.

Senior Group  
going on Tour

WASHINGTON/HOLMES 
COUNTY — Senior Group 
will be going on a tour 
of Ohio Indiana Amish 
country, and Chicago 
Razzle Dazzle on 
September 1-9. For more 
information, call Merita 
Stanley at 594-9980.

Washington County 
Girls Night Out

CHIPLEY — The Women’s 
Imaging Services at 
Northwest Florida 
Community Hospital, 
proudly present Girls 
Night Out, Oct. 11. The 
event will be held at 
the Washington County 
Ag Center in Chipley. 
For more information, 
call Heather Shelby at 
415-8119.

Senior Group Will be 
exploring the Alpine 

Countries
WASHINGTON/HOLMES 

COUNTY — Senior Group 
will be exploring the 
Alpine Countries of 
Germany, Austria, and 
Switzerland on Sept. 
28-Oct. 11 For more 
information, call Merita 
Stanley at 594-9980.

Senior Group going 
to the Georgia 

Mountain Festival
WASHINGTON/HOLMES 

COUNTY — Senior Group 
will be going to the 
Georgia Mountain 
Festival Oct. 16-20. The 
festival will be held in 
Helen and in Hiawassee, 
Ga. For more information, 
call Merita Stanley at 
594-9980.

Senior Group to 
experience Christmas 

in Branson
WASHINGTON/HOLMES 

COUNTY — Senior Group 
will experience Christmas 
in Branson, Mo., Nov. 
25 to Dec. 1. This trip 
will include seven 
shows, seven days, and 
six nights. For more 
information, call Merita 
Stanley at 594-9980.

Sowell Tractor Co., Inc.
2841 Hwy. 77 North, Panama City
763-5441 • Toll Free: 866-448-9899

www.sowelltractorco.com

We Trade 
for Anything 
That Don’t 

Eat!

Financing
Arranged
(WAC)

EVERYTHING YOU VALUE 0% Financing Available Only On Kabota Equiptment. WAC See dealer for details.

Community EVENTS
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For the latest 

breaking news, visit

BONIFAYNOW.COM

Two 
fugitives 

caught
JAY FELSBERG

Managing Editor

afelsberg@chipleypaper.com

BONIFAY — On March 25 

an investigator with the 

Holmes County Sheriff ’s 

Office went to 1997 N Hwy 

181, a resi-

dence lo-

cated in the 

Prosperity 

community 

of Holmes 

County, to 

investigate 

informa-

tion re-

ceived of 

possible il-

legal drug 

activity at 

the resi-

dence. 
While 

talking with 

subjects 

outside the 

residence 

the investigator observed 

two males run from the 

residence and enter into 

the woods. Holmes Coun-

ty deputies as well as, the 

K-9 tracking team from 

Holmes Correctional 

Institute were called to 

track the two suspects 

through the woods. the 

suspects were appre-

hended a short distance 

from the residence. 

The subjects are iden-

tified as Jason Freddie 

Lamb, 31, of Westville and 

Jason Spencer Johnson, 

30, also from Westville. 

Both subjects had out-

standing warrants out of 

Walton County and Lamb 

had additional warrants 

out of Volusia County. A 

search of the residence 

JAY FELSBERG
Managing Editor

afelsberg@chipleypaper.com

BONIFAY — The news has been 

grim so far for Holmes County, 

but the news may get worse by 

the end of the week.

After getting socked with up 

to 12 inches of rain Saturday, the 

county could get as much as an-

other 12 by end of day Sunday.

The county is still digging out 

jAson lAmb

jAson
joHnson

Photos by JAY FelsBerg

Esto Fire Chief Charles Corcoran was swept into the water on County Road 173, but soon made it 

to safety.

Parts of county could get up to 12 more inches this week

HOLMES COuNtY BRACES FOR

MORE RAIN

Wednesday, APrIl 1, 2009

uncle Jim Brock

Hazel Tison looks 

at Uncle Jim Brock in 

this week’s edition of 

Happy Corner.

A5

gobble, gobble

Young hunters have 

good turkey season.

A9

historical society

seeks members

Society looks for 

new members to 

help accumulate and 

preserve history of 

Holmes County and 

Florida.

A8

inside

Family barn ends up 

in road | A3

the investigator observed 

two males run from the 

residence and enter into 

the woods. Holmes Coun-

ty deputies as well as, the 

K-9 tracking team from 

Holmes Correctional 

jAson lAmb

jAson
joHnson

Institute were called to 

of Holmes 
new members to 

help accumulate and 

preserve history of 

Holmes County and 

Florida.
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For the latest 

breaking news, visit

CHIPLEYPAPER.COM

Washington County 4H team 

shoots for the top, A3
One

arrested
on drug 

charges
JAY FELSBERG

Managing Editor

afelsberg@chipleypaper.com

A Washington County 

woman was arrested over 

the weekend and faces 

multiple drug charges.

On
Friday, 

March 27, 

investiga-

tors with 

the Wash-

ington
County
Sheriff ’s 

Office
served 

a search 

warrant 

on 3871 Pine Log Road.  

A search of the residence 

revealed methamphet-

amines, drug parapher-

nalia, and meth oil.

Jeanie Ann Shipes, 

34-year-old white female, 

was charged with manu-

facturing of a controlled 

service, possession of 

drug paraphernalia and 

child endangerment, 

and trafficking in meth-

amphetamines that car-

ries a minimum manda-

tory sentence of up to 15 

years in prison and fines 

of up to $250,000. Shipes 

is being held at the Wash-

ington County Jail on a 

$53,500 bond.

Deputies found evi-

dence where Shipes 

had been manufactur-

ing meth through a new 

method known as the 

Blue Pond 

Cemetery and High 

Hill Primitive Church 

are again the subject 

for “The Prattler.”

A5

Plug

With all the wet 

weather at Vernon 

Elementary School, 

inside

Wednesday, April 1, 2009

JeAnie Ann 
SHiPeS

PHotoS bY JAY FeLSberg | Washington County News

Water rushed across roads in Caryville and northern Holmes County Saturday.

Washington, Panhandle 

preparing for more 

V o l u m e  8 5 ,  N u m b e r  9 9

Your hometown newspapers 
keep you up-to-date and 

informed about daily happenings 
in our communities... from 

important news and issues to 
stories about the people and 

activities that make this area a 
special place to live and work.

Pick up a copy today or go online for 
the latest breaking news!

Available 
at area 

newsstands,
or subscribe 
by mail by 

calling
866-747-5050www.chipleypaper.com www.bonifaynow.com

Find what matters most

in print, online, everyday.

We’re your trusted source for:

•Up to-the-minute local news & events

•Up to-the-minute local news & events
•Local sports, business and education news
•Faith news and activities

And - always - the best local shopping

Find us on Facebook

And Now
Mobile!
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Sales/Business Dev

Interactive Sales Manager

Are you passionate about providing the best 
media solutions to your customers? Florida’s 
Freedom Interactive Newspapers, is seeking a 
hands-on Interactive Sales Manager with a 
track record of driving revenue in multiplat-
form environments. You will be responsible for 
coaching, mentoring and developing your 
sales team with the goal of aggressively in-
creasing revenue.

Included within your sphere of responsibility 
are the following: Developing new revenue 
streams, setting sales goals, field coaching 
and managing sales performance - making 
this a very “hands on” leadership role.  The In-
teractive Sales Manager will foster an attitude 
of exceptional customer service and provide 
motivation, leadership and fresh ideas to the 
selling process.

Position Requirements:
Proven sales experience in digital
products
Experience developing and leading a
high performing sales team
Vision and passion to drive growth in
interactive sales
Strong analytical ability to budget
forecast and effectively utilize market
research

The successful candidate will lead
cross-selling efforts in print and digital

solutions and must possess a demonstrated
expertise with the Internet.

A college degree in advertising or marketing is
preferred but not required.

Sales Experience and previous media
management experience is preferred.

Florida Freedom offers an excellent benefit 
package including health, dental, vision and 
life insurance, 401(k) plan, vacation and sick 
leave.

This role offers a chance to live and work 
along Florida’s Emerald Coast encompassing 
24 miles of pristine white-sand beaches 
stretching along the Gulf of Mexico.

If this sounds like the right mix of challenge 
and opportunity, please e-mail your resume or 
contact me at either of the following ad-
dresses:

E-Mail: sfeith@notes.freedom.com
http://www.facebook.com/#!/skfeith

http://www.linkedin.com/profile/view?id=1999909&trk
=tab_pro

https://twitter.com/#!/skfeith

For more information about our organization 
please go to:  freedom.com/careers

Web ID#: 34211062

Chipley • 4638 Hwy. 77  • By Appt

$264,900 - Beautiful all brick home with over 27 acres. Kitchen with under mount 
lighting and breakfast bar. Two sun tunnels and a skylight make home bright and airy. 
16x20 Florida room is fully heated and cooled. Also has a 16x16 screened patio. Master 
is a 400 SF addition with cathedral ceilings, custom built-ins, lg walk in closet, and 
wood burning FP. Pole barn and kennel area w/water and electricity. Lg separate fenced 
area for the sheep, also w/water and electricity. Orig. 7.34 acres have electric fencing. 
Additional 20 acres off the back of property w/horse trails. MLS#417069
 
                                                                     Kimberly Brandon, REALTOR®
                                     850-819-0995
                                       www.SmartMovesRealEstate.com

Notice of Public Hear-
ing to Adopt/Revise 
School Board 
Po l i c i e s / P r o c e d u r e s  
Washington County 
School District
652 Third 
Street-Chipley, FL 
32428
Monday, July 9, 2012 
at 5:00pm
Notice is hereby given 
that on Monday, July 
9,2012 at 5:00pm., the 
Washington County 
School Board will con-
sider adopting and or 
revising School Board 
Po l i c i es /P rocedures ,  
Student Progression 
Plan and Student Code 
of Conduct( Student 
Dress Code.)
The purpose and spe-
cific legal authority un-
der which School 
B o a r d
Po l i c i e s / P r o c e d u r e s  
are authorized, and a 
summary of the 
estimate of economic 
impact of the proposed 
policies/procedures on 
all affected persons, 
are given.
Purpose To consider 
adopting and or revis-
ing School Board Poli-
cies/ Procedures, Stu-
dent Progression Plan 
and Student Code of 
C o n d u c t ( i n c l u d i n g  
Dress Code)to reflect 
policy and statutory 
changes.
1. Board 
Po l i c i e s / P r o c e d u r e s  
5.302 Corporal 
Punishment 8.60+ 
Te l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n  
Plan and Electronic 
Communication
2. Student Progression 
Plan
3. Code of Student 
Conduct ( including 

Student Dress Code)
Legal Authority The 
Washington County 
School Board is 
authorized under 
Chapter 1001.43 of the 
Florida K-12 Education 
Code to develop/ 
revise policy and 
procedures. Economic 
Impact The cost of 
promulgating these 
revisions will be 
approximately $1.00 
per document. Cost or 
benefit to those 
affected: None Impact 
on open market: None
Individuals wishing to 
obtain a copy of the 
proposed new or 
revised Board 
Po l i c i e s / P r o c e d u r e s  
may contact the 
Superintendent’s Office 
at 652 Third Street, 
Chipley, Florida
As published in the 
Washington County 
News June 9, 13, 20, 
2012

IN THE CIRCUIT 
COURT OF THE 14TH 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN 
AND FOR WASHING-
TON COUNTY, FLOR-
IDA CIVIL DIVISION
CASE NO.: 
672011CA000544CAXXXX
ONEWEST BANK, FSB,
Plaintiff,
vs.
ROY S. FRANK, et al,
Defendants
NOTICE OF ACTION
TO: UNKNOWN 
HEIRS, BENEFICIAR-
IES, DEVISEES, AS-
SIGNEES, LIENORS, 
CREDITORS, TRUS-
TEES, AND ALL 
OTHER WHO MAY 
CLAIM AN INTEREST 
IN THE ESTATE OF AL-
ICE T. FRANK, DE-
CEASED.
Last Known Address: 
Unknown
Current Address: Un-
known
YOU ARE NOTIFIED 
that an action for Fore-
closure of Mortgage on 
the following described 
property:
has been filed against 
you and you are re-
quired to serve a copy 
of your written defense, 
if any, to it, on Marshall 
C. Watson, P.A., Attor-
ney for Plaintiff, whose 
address is 1800 NW 
49th Street, Suite 120, 
FT. LAUDERDALE FL 
33309 on or before 
May 4, 2012, a date 
which is withini thirty 
(30) days after the first 
publication of this No-
tice in the Washington 
County News and file 
the original with the 
Clerk of this Court ei-
ther before service on 
Plaintiff’s attorney or 
immediately thereafter; 
otherwise a default will 
be entered against you 
for the relief demanded 
in the complaint. If you 
are a person with a dis-
ability who needs any 
accommodation in or-
der to participate in this 
proceeding, you are 
entitled, at no cost to 
you, to provision of cer-
tain assistance. Please 
contact the ADA Coor-
dinator by mail at P.O. 
Box 1089, Panama 
City, FL 32402 or by 
phone at (850) 
747-5338 at lease 
seven (7) days before 
your scheduled court 
appearance, or imme-
diately upon receiving 
this notification if the 
time before the sched-
uled appearance is less 
than seven (7) days. If 
you are hearing im-
paired, please call 711.
WITNESS my hand and 
the seal of this Court 
this 27 day of March, 
2012.
Linda Hayes Cook
As Clerk of the Court
By K McDaniel
As Deputy Clerk
As published in the 
Washington County 
News June 9, 16,, 2012

ORDINANCE NO. 
12-001
TOWN OF WAUSAU, 
FLORIDA
GOLF CART ORDI-
NANCE
AN ORDINANCE OF 
THE TOWN OF WAU-
SAU, FLORIDA; REGU-
LATING HOW A GOLF 
CART CAN BE OPER-
ATED UPON A 
COUNTY ROAD THAT 
HAS BEEN DESIG-
NATED BY A COUNTY, 
OR A MUNICIPAL 
STREET THAT HAS 
BEEN DESIGNATED 
BY A MUNICIPALITY 
FOR THE USE OF 
GOLF CARTS.
The first reading of Or-
dinance 12-001 was 
held on April 12, 2012; 
the final reading of Or-
dinance 12-001 is go-
ing to be on June 28, 
20 12; 6:00 PM or as 
soon thereafter as pos-
sible at the Wausau 
Town Hall Chambers, 
1607 Second Avenue, 
Wausau Florida. A 
complete copy of Ordi-
nance 12-001 can be 
obtained by contacting 
the Town Clerk at 
850-638-1781 or in per-
son at the Wausau 
Town Hall.  A verbatim 
record of these pro-
ceedings will not be 
kept. Anyone needing 
assistance to attend 
this meeting please 
contact the Town Clerk 
48 hours prior to the 
meeting.
The Town of Wausau is 
an equal opportunity 
employer, handi-
capped assessable ju-
risdiction.
Margaret Riley, Town 
Clerk
As published in the 
Washington County 
News on June 6, 2012 
and June 9, 2011.

COLOR 
SELLS!

Get Your Classified 
Ad in color! .

Call now for details 
and be noticed!

638-0212
or

547-9414

Publisher’s 
Notice

“SCAM “
To avoid possible 
scams, it is recom-
mended that con-
sumers should verify 
caller information 
when receiving calls 
regarding credit card 
payments. Consum-
ers should also con-
tact the local com-
pany themselves in-
stead of giving this 
information to indi-
viduals who  are 
contacting them di-
rectly.

ADVERTISE YOUR 
WAY TO SUCCESS! 
Call now to grow your 
business. Get your 
classified ad in 119 
newspapers with one 
order. Advertising Net-
works of Florida-
(866)742.1373

If you like to play 
BINGO but can’t 
handle the smoke, 
come join us folks & 
maybe have dinner. 
Acrossfrom Wal-Mart 
St. Joseph Catholic 
Church. Every Tues-
days. Open 5pm, 
games start at 
6:25pm

Adopt: Doctor, car-
ing family lovingly 

waits for miracle 1st 
baby *Monica* 800-

552-0045*FLBar42311*
Expenses Paid*

Are you pregnant? A 
young married couple 
seeks to adopt. Finan-
cial security. Let’s help 
each other. Expenses 
paid. Holly & Max. Ask 
for Adam (800) 790-
5260. FL Bar No. 
0150789.

For Sale
8 Boxer Puppies, fat as 
little chipmunks,
$20 each. Call 
850-676-4181 for more 
information.

(2) Public Machine 
Shop Auctions Online 
Bidding Only! #1-
Swaim Machine Com-
pany, Inc. Scottsboro, 
Alabama #2- Golden 
Seal Services, Inc. Mar-
ianna, Florida. CNC 
Machines- Lathes-
Shears- Welders, 
MORE! bid now @ 
w w w. H o r t o n A u c t i o n .  
com or www.Sold 
Alabama.com Pete 
Horton AL #213 (800) 
548-0130.

Absolute Auction- 2 
story log home- Cull-
man, AL, 5bd/2ba, 
equipment barn, 11+/ 
acres GT Auctions.com 
(205) 326-0833, 
Granger, Thagard & 
Associates, Jack F. 
Granger, #873

AUCTION LARGE 
FARM AND

CONSTRUCTION
DATE: Saturday 
June 16, 2012 

8:00AM
LOCATION:5529 

Hwy231 North 
Campbellton Fl 

32426
(2) Local Farm
Dispersals, (3)

Estates, Bank Re-
pos, Sheriff Depts, 

city and county
surplus, plus con-

signments.
Mason Auction & 

Sales LLC # AB2766
850-263-0473 Office
850-258-7652 Chad 

Mason
850-849-0792 Gerald 

Mason
www.masonauction.com

Estate and Collecti-
bles

AUCTION
Hazel Ray / Estate

June 16, 2012
9:00 AM CST

Stanley Auction Barn
5476 Fort Rd

1-Mile East Green-
wood Greenwood, 

FL
For more informa-
tion Bradley Clark

AE-433
850-718-6510
John Stanley

AU-044/AB491
850-594-5200

10% Buyer Premium

For Sale Older
Roll Top desk. $400. 
Good exercise machine 
.$ 50 OBO.Call 
638-2434 for more info.

B&B Furniture 1342 
North RR Avenue, 
Chipley. We pay cash 
for clean, quality furni-
ture. and some appli-
ances 850-557-0211 or 
850-415-6866. Ask for 
Pasco or Carolyn

Garage Sale indoors.
Rain or Shine. An-
tiques, furniture, 
dishes, clothing & 
much more. Across the 
street from Trawick.
1546 South 
Blvd.Chipley.
June 9 @ 7:30

Garage Sale. Fri & 
Sat,June 8 & 9. Orange 
Hill Hwy, 1134 Iola Dr., 
Chipley. From 
7AM-Untill. Large size 
womans clothes, chil-
dren clothes, boys & 
girls. Kids bedroom 
suite. chest freezer , 
dining room table & 
chairs, queen size bed-
room suite, amplifier & 
much more.

Mulit-Family Yard 
Sale June 9th 8 am Un-
til. 1362 Cherry Ave
behind Chipley Health 
Dept.Lots of adult, jun-
ior & children clothes, 
purses, shoes, house 
hold items, bed linens, 
furniture, lots of odds & 
ends

Saturday June 9th.
8:00 a.m.til 2:00 p.m. 
1638 Jenkins Rd., Bon-
ifay. Smoker, bedroom 
drapes & 
spread-custom made, 
computer printers & 
etc.

Sunnyhills- 1667 
Barlington Circle. 
Saturday June 9th 
8am-1pm

Estate Sale
Furniture, collecti-
bles, books & Vari-
ous Misc items!
Text FL11550 to 56654

Fresh from the Farm!
Peas, Okra, Zucchini 
and Corn. Call for
pricing (850)956-4556.

GainerBlueberry Farm
Open Thur.Fri. Sat 7 to 
7 Sun. 1 to 6
ClosedMon.Tues. Wed. 
U-Pick $9/gal We pick 
$22/gal.Pre-Pick orders 
need to be placed in 
advance. 9 \miles S on 
Orange Hill Rd.
C h i p l e y .
Gainerblueberryfarm.com
638-1335 258-4180

Wood mizer LT-40 
bend sawmill 18” 
planer, electric pow-
ered. Oliver tractor 115 
hp. Treated lumber, 
184, 186, 286, 686, 284 
on 2x4’s, 16 ft. long. 
For more info call 
(850)547-0956 or 
(850)326-4548.

Air Conditioning Re-
pair. Licenses, refer-
ence, FREE testing. 
Call Shawn at 535-0261 
or 535-4121

Caryville Flea Market
Produce, knives, 
honey, westerns, 
movies, okra $1.00/lb., 
old tools,  new and 
used stuff. Open Satur-
days 8 a.m.

Child Care Available
Brannon Family Child 
Care, located at 1525 
Hwy. 90 in Ponce 
DeLeon, has immediate 
openings for all ages 
up to 5. Call Melissa at 
(850)836-4067.

Meet Singles rights 
now! No paid 
operators, just real 
people like you. 
Browse greetings, 
exchange messages 
and connect live. Try it 
free. Call now (888) 
744-4426

For Sale Rota tiller 
MTD, 5.5 HP $ 235.00
2 1/2 ton Lennox Cen-
tral A/C System $400
638-2999

Matt’s Removal! Gar-
bage removal, free 
metal removal, yard 
jobs, moving jobs. We 
buy items. Nobody 
Beats My Prices! 
(850)547-1445,
cell (850)658-2376.

STOP GNAT & MOS-
QUITO BITES! Buy 
Swamp Gator All Natu-
ral Insect Repellant, 
Family Safe, Use Head 
to Toe. Available at Ace 
Hardware, The Home 
Depot & 
HomeDepot.com

Wanted: Junk
appliances.

Lawn-mowers, farm 
and garden equipment, 
golf carts, satellites  for 

free. I will pick up.
Call (850)-547-0088

WANTED;
Musical Instruments of 
any kind in any condi-
tion. Piano, banjoes, 
drums, guitars, amps. 
LESSONS. Covington 
Music, Chipley. 
850-638-5050.

Earn Extra Income:
Looking for working 
people who already 
have a job who want 

to make an extra 
$1000/mth.Please 
call 850-326-3554

EXPERIENCED OTR 
FLATBED DRIVERS 
earn 50 up to 55 cpm 
loaded. $1000 sign on 
to qualified drivers. 
Home most weekends. 
Vets welcome. Call: 
(843)266-3731 / 
bulldoghiway.com EOE

NEW TO TRUCKING? 
Your new career starts 
now! * $0 Tuition Cost 
* No Credit Check * 
Great Pay & Benefits 
Short employment 
commitment required 
Call (866)297-8916 
www.joinCRST.com

Other

Wanted:
Pet Groomer

Must be experienced. 
Well established busi-
ness and clientele. Ne-
gotiable salary and 
flexible schedule. 
Health Insurance and 
Retirement benefits 
available. Apply in per-
son to Animal Care 
Center/Beaches Pet 
Resort at 8501 Front 
Beach Rd, PCB, or 
send resume via fax to 
850-234-2298 or email 
animalcarecenterpcb@gm
ail.com

Web ID#: 34211509
Text FL11509 to 56654

The Holmes County 
Board of Commission-
ers will receive applica-
tions for a part time 
Mosquito Spray Tech-
nician for the Holmes 
County Board of Com-
missioners. This posi-
tion will be for a maxi-
mum of twenty hours 
(20) per week. Previous 
experience operating 
spray equipment and 
handling the required 
chemicals is desirable. 
All work will be after 
5:00 p.m. A vaild Flor-
ida State Drivers Li-
cense and good driving 
record is required. This 
position does not pro-
vide County Benefits. 
Applications will be re-
ceived until 4:00 p.m. 
on June 18, 2012. Eligi-
ble applicants may ob-
tain an application at 
the Holmes County 
Board of 
Commissioner’s Office, 
107 E. Virginia Ave., 
Bonifay, Fl. 32425, 
Monday thru Friday be-
tween the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 4:00 p.m. or 
a t
www.holmescountyfl.org. The
Holmes County 
Board of Commission-
ers is an Equal Oppor-
tunity Employer and a 
Drug Free Workplace.

Temporary laborers 
for fence project near 
Bonifay. Must be able 
to lift at least 75 lbs., 
have basic carpentry 
skills and have reliable 
transportation. Valid ID 
required. Job will start 
mid-June and should 
last 3 to 4 months. 
Equal Opportunity Em-
ployer. (912)270-5123.

Airlines ARE HIRING-
Train for hands on Avi-
ation Maintenance Ca-
reer. FAA approved 
program. Financial aid 
if qualified - Housing 
available CALL Aviation 
Institute of Mainte-
nance (866)314-3769.

DRIVER TRAINEES 
NEEDED NOW! Learn 
to drive for Schneider 
National! Earn $700 per 
week! No experience 
needed! Local CDL 
Training. Job Ready in 
just 15 days! (888) 
368-1964

Drivers- Class A 
Flatbed- $- Home 
Weekends, Run South-
east US, Requires 1 Yr 
OTR Flatbed 
experience, & pay UP 
TO .39¢/mile Call (800) 
572-5489 x227, SunBelt 
Transport, LLC

Pro Drivers Wanted 
Call for Details on Our 
New Pay Package 2 
Mos CDL Class A Exp 
(877) 258-8782 www. 
meltontruck.com/drive

Medical Office
Trainees Needed! Train 
online to become a 
Medical Office Assis-
tant! No Experience 
needed! Training & Lo-
cal Job Placement as-
sistance thru SC Train-
ing, HS Diploma/GED 
& PC/Internet needed! 
(888) 374-7294.

ATTEND COLLEGE
ONLINE from Home. 
*Medical, *Business, 
*Criminal Justice, 
*Hospitality. Job place-
ment assistance. Com-
puter available. Finan-
cial Aid if qualified. 
SCHEV certified. Call 
(877)206-5165     www. 
CenturaOnline.com

Executive
Office

Space for rent down-
town Chipley. All util. 
incl’d 638-1918

2 B R / 1 . 5 B A
Townhouse for rent. 
No pets. Deposit, refer-
ences required. 843 8th 
St, Chipley. 638-1918

For Rent
1BD/1BA downtown 
Chipley. 638-1918

One Bdrm. Apart-
ment. Bonifay area. 
Stove, refrigerator. In-
cludes all electricity & 
utilities. $425/month. 
Info: (850)547-0956, 
(850)326-4548

Publisher’s
Notice

All real estate advertis-
ing in this newspaper is 
subject to the Fair 
Housing Act which 
makes it illegal to ad-
vertise “any preference, 
limitation or discrimina-
tion based on race, 
color, religion, sex, 
handicap, familial status 
or national origin, or an 
intention, to make any 
such preference, limita-
tion or discrimination” 
Familial status includes 
children under the age 
of 18 living with parents 
or legal custodians, 
pregnant women and 
people securing cus-
tody of children under 
18.

This newspaper will not 
knowingly accept any 
advertising for real es-
tate which is in violation 
of the law. Our readers 
are hereby informed 
that all dwellings adver-
tised in this newspaper 
are available on a equal 
opportunity basis. To 
complain of discrimina-
tion call HUD toll-free at 
1-800-669-9777. The 
toll-free number for the 
hearing impaired is 
1-800-927-9275.

3 BR/1 BA House in
Vernon. Hwy 79 S. 
CH/A, city water. 
535-2829

For Lease/Rent. 
3BR/2BA brick home. 
$675/mo., $600 dam-
age deposit. 1579 Da-
vidson Rd., 
850-258-2080.

For Rent 3BR/1BA 
house, $300/month. 
2BR/1BA trailer, 
$250/month.
Ponce de Leon area.
(850)269-5000

For Rent
3BR/2BA Brick House 
inclosed garage.
No Pets. 850-638-1918

Large Executive 
home. 4,500 sq. ft., 5 
bedrooms/6 bath-
rooms, 2 laundry 
rooms. Private paved 
driveway meets 
highway-Bonifay. Fully 
furnished. Serious calls 
only. $1500 per month. 
(850)547-2096.

New house for rent. 3 
Br/2Ba, in country. 
$800/month, 1st & last 
month rent. In Vernon.
(850)896-8131.

Nice clean houses, 
apartments & mobile 
homes for rent in Boni-
fay area. HUD ap-
proved. Also, houses 
for sale. Call Martha 
( 8 5 0 ) 5 4 7 - 5 0 8 5 ,  
(850)547-2531.

Spacious 3BD/1BA
House Country Setting 
Bonifay. CH/A. 
547-2091 441-8181

2 and 3 Bedroom
Mobile Homes for rent 
in Bonifay. No Pets. 
(850)547-3462.

3BD/2BA MH 3/4 mile 
from Elementary 
School. On Hwy 177A. 
Family oriented park. 
Call (850)547-3746.

For Rent
2 BR/ 2BA MH 
$435/mth. 2BR/1BA MH 
$375/mth. Call 
638-2999

FOR RENT: Nice 
2BR & 3BR M Hon 
Corbin RD  Near 
Sapp Community 
Church. I furnish 
water, garbage, ex-
termination, change 
air filter & mow grass 
once a mth. Deck on 
front & back, small 
storage building.For 
more info, call Lou 
Corbin @ 638-1911 
or cell phone, 
326-0044. Sorry No 
Pets.

Mobile Home for 
Rent. 3/2 Doublewide 
just S. of Bonifay on 
Pleasant Hill Rd. Availa-
ble after 1st of June. 
Rent $600/ mth Secu-
rity Deposit $500.00
638-8220

Rent or 
Lease/Purchase

24 X 80 Mobile 
Home in Bonifay. 4 
bdr, 2 ba. $700/mo

850-699-9464

For Sale By Owner
3BD/2BA 1800Sq Ft 
well maintained brick 
home on 5 acres in the 
city of Chipley..Call 
850-490-4404 for more 
information.

FOR SALE!!!!!!
Gilbert Catfish Pond
Closed Monday and 
Tuesday
2854 Highview Circle
Chipley, Fl 32428
Phone:850-638-8633

Acre of land for sale -
Hwy 177A, Bonifay.
(863)773-6155

Reduced Price!
Two 8 acres on Bedie 
Rd, Two 9 acres on 
Bedie Rd. Two 5 acres 
& One 10 acres on 
Buddy Rd. One 10 ac-
res on Gainer Rd. 10 
acres on Hwy 77. 
Owner financing For 
more info call Milton 
Peel @ 850-638-1858.

20 Acres- Live on Land 
NOW!! Only $99/mo. 
$0 Down, Owner Fi-
nancing.     NO CREDIT 
CHECKS! Near El 
Paso, Texas , Beautiful 
Mountain Views! Free 
Color Brochure.(800) 
755-8953 www. 
sunsetranches.com

2000 Dodge Ram 
1500 Conversion Van
w/wheelchair lift. Call 
(850)773-5511, Joe.

BARGAIN CORNERPANAMA CITY NEWS HERALD

FREE ADS FOR ITEMS $250 OR LESS
UP TO 4 ITEMS PER AD • PRICE MUST BE IN THE AD

VIEW ADS
ONLINE
ALL WEEK!

MAIL TO: THE NEWS HERALD • BARGAIN CORNER • P.O. BOX 1940 • PANAMA CITY, FL 32401
PLACE ADS ONLINE AT WWW.NEWSHERALD.COM • CLICK ON “CLASSIFIEDS”

C&C Bookkeeping
and Tax Service. Open 
5 days a week. 8am to 
5pm. Call 
(850)638-1483

Call To Place
An Ad In Classifieds.
Washington

County News
(850) 638-0212

Holmes County
Times-Advertiser

(850) 547-9414
Turn to classified!
You can bank on

our bargains!

Call To Place An Ad
In Classifieds.

Washington County
News

(850) 638-0212
Holmes County

Times-Advertiser
(850) 547-9414

Call To Place
An Ad In Classifieds.

Washington
County News
(850) 638-0212
Holmes County

Times-Advertiser
(850) 547-9414
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